
Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

November 11, 2024 
 

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, November 11, 2024 to transact business.  Mr. Jordan called 

the meeting to order at 6:39 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  The start time for this regular 

meeting was publicized as immediately following the Public Hearing for Zoning Commission Case ZC#1-24.  Gary Jordan, 

Guy Bainum and Bari Henning answered the roll call.  Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance 

Supervisor/Zoning Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Jody Wilson, Charlie Maklem, 

Stephanie Jones, Brittany Jones, and Ed Boll.  

 

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the minutes of the October 28, 2024 regular meeting.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. Mr. 

Bainum motioned to approve the minutes of the October 29, 2024 special meeting/hearing.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas, 

 

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation 

status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to 

actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.   

 

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the attached bills.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas. 

 

Zoning Report 

Mr. Tatman provided a report.  He indicated he was working on making the alternative energy resolution fit and match up in 

the zoning resolution book.  Mr. Tatman said he has added it to the book and is working on plugging in the definitions where 

they need to go in the original resolution book.  He indicated he plans to have it done by the end of the week and then have it 

up on the website soon after.  Mr. Tatman said he has been training on the new zoning software and hopefully here soon it 

will be up and running.  Mr. Tatman informed the Trustees that he has sent out letters for a couple of properties to be mowed. 

Mr. Tatman commented on the camper parked in the Township parking lot.  He indicated it had been sitting there more than 

30 days and there was a note with a phone number on it.  He stated he would call the number tomorrow.  Mr. Henning 

proposed that if that does not work, call the Sheriff Department.  Mr. Bainum said he thought the owner of the camper had 

relatives here down the road.  Mr. Tatman said yes that was correct.    

 

Cemetery and Maintenance Report 

Mr. Tatman provided a report.  He indicated the last of the foundations at the cemetery will be poured this week.  Mr. Tatman 

said the HVAC system is going in the new maintenance building, next will be plumbing then electric, insulation, drywall, and 

paint.  He indicated he met with Duke Energy-gas Tuesday for meter location placement on the old maintenance building.  

Mr. Tatman said the leaves are all about mulched up and taken care of in the cemeteries.  He said he has been out boom 

mowing along some of the roads and the ditch in front of Clover Cemetery.  He indicated there is a little area that needs 

trimmed and it will be done for the year.  Mr. Jordan discussed the stop signs on Musgrove Road.  Mr. Tatman indicated that 

Duke has put up new poles at that location and once they remove the old poles you will have a better view of the stop signs.  

Mr. Jordan said we have to figure out how to make that intersection safer.  Mr. Jordan asked Mr. Tatman to benchmark 

finances from other surrounding departments in preparation for recommendations on salary, hourly, and other budget items 

for 2025.  

 

Emergency Services Report 

Chief McCarthy provided a report.  There were 42 Fire and 92 EMS calls for the month of October.  In regard to community 

participation crews were out in the Village for trick-or-treat.  Chief McCarthy stated the Township received turn down letters 

for the FY2023 FEMA AFG Grant (applied for money to purchase a new fire truck), FY2023 FEMA SAFER Grant (applied 

for money to increase fulltime staff), and the Norfolk and Southern Safety-First Grant (applied for funds for a new ATV).  

The Chief stated he would like to apply for the FY2024 FEMA AFG Grant with a deadline of mid-December.  He said he 

would also like to apply for the Ohio Department of Commerce Division of State 2025 Fire Department Equipment Grant.  

The Chief said Dualite donated $5,000 to the Emergency Services Department and that he will send a thank you letter.  Mr. 

Jordan said the Township is grateful for Dualite. 

 

Public Participation 

Mr. Jordan stated that the regular meeting started earlier than typical (As was publicized, beginning immediately following 

the Public Hearing for Zoning Commission Case ZC#1-24).  Ms. Stephanie Jones and Ms. Brittany Jones (residents of 

Stonelick Township) had entered the meeting at 6:45 pm and Mr. Jordan indicated that by that time the minutes, finances, 

maintenance, and zoning reports had been completed.  Mr. Jordan indicated we were now at the Public Participation segment 

of the regular meeting.  Ms. Brittany Jones indicated she was interested in the zoning change.  The Zoning Hearing was at 

6:30 pm and was concluded. The Trustees continued with public participation for the regular meeting.  Ms. Brittany Jones 

asked the definition of B-2 zoning.  Mr. Tatman indicated it was businesses like strip malls.  Ms. Brittany Jones ask if there 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

November 11, 2024 
were any limitations on Industrial zoning.  Mr. Jordan stated the Clermont County CIC owns the property.  Mr. Henning said 

being zoned industrial there are no limits.  Ms. Brittany Jones asked the Trustees if they had a plan indicating Industrial 

zoning was crossing State Route 32.   Mr. Henning said the property in question is right at the interchange on the other side 

of State Route 32 (from Purina) and is a prime site for development.  Mr. Henning said the property was originally zoned 

industrial 20 years ago and was changed to B-2, now the owners want it back to industrial.  Ms. Stephanie Jones said could it 

be manufacturing like Huhtamaki or Purina.  Mr. Henning said yes.  Mr. Henning said utilities are there, north of there does 

not have the same utilities and he does not see industry going out there (north of 276 toward Stonelick Township).  Mr. 

Jordan indicated growth is coming down State Route 32 and he hopes it stays on the 32 corridor. He indicated Williamsburg 

Township sees pressure from growth from Batavia and Mt. Orab.  He said we will continue to see growth over the next 10 to 

15 years.  Ms. Brittany Jones said she was concerned about Purina and that the Trustees need to protect us from nuisances 

that are coming.  Mr. Jordan said we all have concerns about an odor or aroma and that has been stated to Purina.  He said if 

you can have a crematory in Loveland, Purina should be able to manage it plus you have EPA oversight.  Mr. Bainum said 

this is Purina’s first new building in years.  He indicated there was a lawsuit on an older facility in Denver over aroma, but 

when addressed he was told it went from 1,000 calls a week to one.  Mr. Bainum said he feels like they (Purina) will control 

it.  Mr. Jordan said we have expressed our concerns and they (Purina) say they will address it.  Mr. Tatman said if Purina gets 

a complaint, they will log it so they can pinpoint timing or issues.  He feels like we are not giving them a chance as they have 

not even started.  Mr. Jordan reminded the audience of the Township’s five-minute limit on individual participation, but 

indicated tonight’s meeting was not loaded with topics so the Trustees had some time to talk.  Ms. Brittany Jones indicated 

when she came here before she was told it (the Purina plant) was a grain only facility, no meat grain only.  Mr. Bainum said 

he did not agree.  He said it was promoted as a dry food plant.  Mr. Henning said we questioned it too and were told that 

some frozen meat was involved in the process.  He said down the road there could be a wet food plant.  Ms. Stephanie Jones 

said why not look for another company.  Mr. Jordan said if they comply with zoning they are allowed and they supply good 

paying jobs.   Ms. Brittany Jones ask about zoning resolutions on odor.  Mr. Jordan said we have zoning and the EPA.  Ms. 

Brittany Jones says there is a history of odor.  Mr. Henning said this is new plant with new technology.  Ms. Jones claimed it 

was the same technology.  Mr. Henning stated we have heard of others that put in new technology and any odor has 

improved.  Mr. Henning said let’s give them a chance.  Ms. Jones said let’s prevent future problems.  Mr. Henning said if 

they meet zoning regulations cannot prevent it.  Mr. Jordan said it would be costly to zone our fears out.   He said there are a 

lot of different thoughts in the community and keep in mind our schools.  Mr. Jordan said we landed well on solar.  Ms. 

Stephanie Jones said Mr. Lefferson said financial reasons were the only reason for no solar.  Ms. Jones said the businesses 

that come here should not impact the people that live here, you can pick and choose.  Ms. Jones said you are not thinking 

about the people here.  Mr. Henning said this is based on “if” there is an odor.  Mr. Jordan reminded the audience again of the 

five-minute limit indicating we spent 20 minutes in discussion.  Mr. Henning said the Trustees make decisions all the time 

and cannot satisfy everyone; there are other people who are in favor of it.  Ms. Brittany Jones said maybe the Trustees should 

ask the citizens.  Mr. Henning said one of the positive results is building a new school without a levy.  Ms. Stephanie Jones 

said you could have another company.  Mr. Henning said prior to Purina other companies did look at the location but were 

not landed.  Mr. Bainum said other companies have leapfrogged us.  Mr. Bainum said Township representatives met with two 

of Purina’s scientist about the new technology and he was confident they will control it.  Mr. Jordan said it is hard to pick and 

choose companies.  Ms. Stephanie Jones said your going to have choices because it is an up-and-coming area. Mr. Bainum 

said we understand your questions.  Mr. Jordan said we will manage through it.  Ms. Brittany Jones said she wished people 

would think about preservation.  Mr. Jordan asked if they had talked to their trustees (Stonelick Township).  Ms. Jones 

indicated they had.  Mr. Jordan said they are welcome at other Township Meetings. 

 

Ms. Wilson said she was to pass on a thank you from Scott Tarvin for a couple of issues that were taken care of.  Mr. 

Henning thanked Ms. Wilson for the information that Tate Township did have a RUMA (Road Use Maintenance Agreement) 

before work on the solar project in Tate began.  Mr. Henning asked Ms. Wilson if Tate Township roads were involved.  Ms. 

Wilson said yes.  Ms. Wilson referred to the $25,000 escrow account wording that was under future consideration to be 

added to the zoning resolution on alternative energy. She said Mr. Jordan indicated the Township would discuss with legal 

counsel.  She indicated Tate Township had originally proposed a $100,000 escrow and legal wanted revised down to the 

$25,000.  Ms. Wilson said following Ohio Revised Code for the time period on zoning resolution amendments down the 

road, when would the Township look at again.  Mr. Henning said that has not been discussed since the last meeting and with 

the holidays it would be after the first of the year.  Mr. Tatman indicated there were other things in the zoning code that need 

to be updated or amended.  He said he would talk to the Zoning Commission.  Mr. Tatman said they would work on slowly 

and steadily next year.  He said it is recommended to update every five years and was planned for Zoning Commission next 

year. 

 

Mr. Boll said on the point of aroma with Purina are there any monitoring systems.  Mr. Bainum said yes Purina has a way to 

log it with information on their website.  Mr. Boll asked does the Township have a monitoring system.  Mr. Bainum said no.  

There was mention of an issue the last few weeks.  Mr. Jordan said that was spreading manure on the fields.    



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

November 11, 2024 
 

Mr. Bainum reminded the Trustees of the Clermont County Township Association Meeting at the Firehouse this Thursday.   

 

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 7:29 p.m.  Mr. Henning second.  All 

yeas. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Fiscal Officer     Chairperson    


